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Fax: +91 20 6624 4605

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of SE Forge Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SE Forge Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Fquity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
read with the management’s assessment of going concern and the reasons for not making any
adjustments to the carrying values (including adjustment on account of impairment of assets} or
classification of assets and liabilities as more fully explained in the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section below, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principtes
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its loss,
total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 5 in the financial statements, which indicates that, the Company had losses
during the previous year and has continued to incur losses and as at the year end it's net-worth is
substantially eroded with the accumulated losses aggregating to Rs 981.88 crore. Subsequent to the
year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has defauited in repayment of credit facility payable to
lenders aggregating to Rs. 9.86 crore as on May 29, 2019 and has also defaulted in making payments
to certain overdue creditors.

The aforesaid conditions indicate existence of liquidity stress and material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and consequently, the ability
of the Company to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normatl course of business.

The Company is dependent on the direct or indirect financial support from Suzlon Energy Limited (“the
parent/ SEL™). SEL is working towards a resolution plan with its lenders and has received a non-binding
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offer from a potential investor, which we are informed is currently valid till June 3, 2019 (the terms of
the non-binding offer provide for extension of the validity period of the offer on an exclusive basis as
may be mutually agreed by the parties), and envisages infusion of additional equity in SEL, purchase
of a business line by the investor and considerable amount of waiver of the debts by its lenders, which
will enable SEL and the Company to scale up its operations and meet the remaining financial obligations
including that of the Company. These measures are contingent upon the approval of the lenders of the
resolution plan including waiver of the debts, and the approval of SEL's shareholders for the preferential
allotment of shares, which events are not wholly within the control of SEL. The Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern is solely dependent on successful cutcome of the above mentioned SEL
management’s plans.

As stated in the note and based on the information available with the Company, management of SEL
is confident of obtaining required approval of the lenders and its shareholders for raising adequate
resources and provide unconditional financial support to the Company for a period of 12 months from
the date of Balance sheet. Having regard to the aforesaid, the financial statements have presently
been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern and hence, no
adjustments have been made to the carrying values (including adjustment on account of impairment
of assets) or classification of assets and liabilities.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The director’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report including annexure, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it is made available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Refating to Other Information’,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)}(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiatity and qualitative factors in
(i)Y planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

C)

d)

f)

g}

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern paragraph above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration to its directors during
the year and hence, the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements, refer note 38 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses,
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iiil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
{(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Jayesh Parmar

Place: ?u e Partner
Date: \‘/)CU/ Q6,269 Membership No. 106388
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ANNEXURE VA" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internat financial controls over financial reporting of SE Forge Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controis. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reascnable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

J.
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial contrels over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No, 117366W/W-100018)
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Jayesh Parmar
Place: Pymnie Partner
Date: | oy B0,2009 Membership No. 106388
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ANNEXURE "B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDIETORS' REPORT
(Refetrred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(1)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a regular program of verification, which in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given by management and the records
examined by us, the title deeds of immovable properties inciuded in the property, plant
and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the yvear by the Management
at reasonable intervals and discrepancies noted were appropriately adjusted in the books of
account.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit and hence reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company has generaily been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods and
Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
authorities,

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

{(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Customs Duty and Goods and Services Tax as on March
31, 2019 on account of disputes.
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(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

{xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: YUy1g
Date: MC\,L, 30,2619

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and
government. The Company has not issued any debentures.

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised.
The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Jayesh Parmar
Partner
Membership No. 106388



SE Forge Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019
(ALl amaunts in Crores untess otherwise slaled)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2019 . As at March 31, 2018 k
Assets
Nen-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 446.98 493,13
Capitat work - in - progress 0.46 0.29
Intangible assets 6 2.02 2.76
Financial assets
Other financial assets 10 9.83 6,41
Deferred tax assets {net) 11
Other non - current assels 12 62.89 70.44
522.18 573.03
Current Assets
InvenLories 7 122.47 91.79
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 8 92,47 120.80
Lash and cash equivatents 9 0.10 0.04
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 0.16 -
Other financial assets 13 0.55 0.52
Current tax assets 0.54 0.16
Other cuirent assets 14 3.58 6.06
219.87 219,37
Total assets 742.05 792.40
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 784,92 784.92
Other equity 16 (526.63) [481.80)
Total equity 258.29 303.12
Non-current liabilities
Financial tiabilities
Borrowings 17 195.08 251.39
Provisions 18 1.22 1.03
196.30 252,42
Current liabilities
Financial lahilities
Borrowings 19 46,09 64.77
Trade payables
Outstanding dues of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 2% 113.99 51.69
Cutstanding dues other than of Micro Smail and Medium Enterprises 6.82 4.67
Gther financial liabilities 22 61.1% 59,29
Provisions 20 2.93 2.63
Other current liabilities 23 0.69 0.41
Cantract liabilities 24 55.83 53.40
287.46 236.86
Total liabilities 483.76 489.28
Total equity and [fabilities 742.05 792.40
Summary of significant accounting policies. 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

e

Jayesh Parmar
Partner

Place: Pune

Date: May. Zp 2019

For and on behalf of Board gf Directors of

SE Forge Limited
™

Vinod R, Tanti

Director

BIN - D0002266

Place: Pune
Date: May 29, 2019

‘:ﬁﬂ /\,"Lw i~

TPA Narayana
Chief Financial
Mem No, 088707
Place: Pune
Date: May 29, 2019

ficer

Chief Executive Officer

Ptace: Pune
Date: May 29, 2019

Mem No. A50113
Place: Pune



SE Forge Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated)

Particular '..-Notes Year Ended Year Ended .
articuiars o March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Income
Revenue from operations 24 356.64 359.84
Other income 25 2.29 2,76
Total income 358.93 362.60
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 26 196.26 146.75
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 {20.80) 6.49
Employee benefits expense 28 29.60 30.18
Finance costs 3 38.75 46.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 46,55 46.81
Cther expenses 30 113.82 108.60
Total expenses 404.18 385.20
Praofit/ (toss) before tax (45.25) {22.60)
Tax expense:
Current tax (Refer note 32)
Deferred tax (Refer note 32)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (45.25) (22.60)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans 33 0.13 (0.34)
Income tax effect on the above - .
Gther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.13 (0.34)
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {45.38) (22.26)
Earnings per share in rupees:;
Basic & diluted 34 {0.58) (0.29)
Summary of significant accounting policies. 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For beloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jayesh Parmar
Partner

Place: Pune

Date: May "2{»2019

""//"7) A ./\/ZL(’_L

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

SE Forge Limited

(e

Vinod R, Tanti
Director

DIN - 00002266
Place: Pune

Date: May 29, 2019

LV el

TPA Narayahan

Chief Finadficial Officer
Mem No. 088707
Place: Pune

Date: May 29, 2019

Sunil §upta
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Pune
Date: May 29, 2019

Akshay R, Kui:f;f
Company Secr ;Q-“
Mem No. Asofa;@ )
Place: Pune Ems
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SE Forge Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated)

©Particulars

“Year.ended
. March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax

Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

{Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment

Unrealised exchange (gain) / loss
Sundry credit batances and provisions written back

Allowance for doubful advances
Finance cost

Finance income
Operating profit / (loss} before working capital changes

Movements in working capital
Movements in retirement provisions
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets

{Increase)/decrease in other financiat assets non-current

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, ptant and equipment

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than

three months})
interest received finance income
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B}

(45.25) (22.60)
46.55 46.81
(0.41) -
(1.91) {0.30)
{0.81) (1.79)

4.29 -
35.82 42.99
(0.76) (0.41)

37.52 64.70

0.35 (0.43)

2.71 2.68
29.04 9.55

(30.68) 1.09

3.64 5.71
(3.57) 0.65
66.45 (17.23)

2.48 2.22

107.94 68.94
{0.37) (0.03)

107.57 68.91

1.06 .
(0.28) (6.76)
0.74 0.43
1.52 (6.33)




SE Forge Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated)

hT L Particulars

Year ended -0
March 31,2019 50000

. Year ended .
March 31, 2018

Cash flows from financing activities

interest paid

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Movement in short - term botrowings (net)

Net cash flow from/(used in)} financing activities (C}

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents{A+B+(C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 9)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 9)

(35.38)

(54.96)
(18.69)

(42.93)

(39.20)

19.41

{(109.03)

(62.72)

(0.14)

0.18

0.04

Notes:

i} The figures in brackets represents outflows except (loss)/ profit before tax.

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Partner
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SE Forge Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated

1.

Corporate Information

SE Forge Limited ("SE Forge" or the "the Company") is a public iimited Company domiciled in
India and it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Suzlon Energy Limited. The Company is engaged in
the manufacture of forging rings and casting articles, required primarily for use in Wind Turbine
Generators {'WTGs'). The Company has set up its manufacturing facilities as "Units in Notified
Special Economic Zone {('SEZ)" at Vadodara and Coimbatore, in the states of Gujarat and Tamil
Nadu respectively. The Company has obtained approvals from the Development Commissioners
for setting up the manufacturing facilities as "Units in the Notified SEZ" vide letter No
KASEZ/P&C/6/57/07-08/4744 dated July 31, 2007 for Vadodara Unit and letter No. 8/1/2007-
Suzlon Infra dated September 18, 2007 for Coimbatore Unit. The Company caters to both
domestic and international markets. The Financial statements were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 29, 2019,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). The financial statements from the year ended 31 March
2017 are prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and as per historical cost
basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at deemed cost:

* Land and buildings classified as property, plant and equipment,
~ e Software classified as intangible assets

Recent Accounting Developments
Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and has amended the following standards:

Ind AS 116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified as on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases,
including appendices thereto. ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under
Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’
assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.




SE Forge Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

_f_\_ll amouids in Rupees, unless otherwise siated

4.1

.. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018, The Company will
adopt the standard on Aprii 1, 2019. The Company does not have any material impact on
statement of profit and loss.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee
Benefils’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The
amendments require an entity:

* lo use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder
of the period after a pfan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any
reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of
the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 01,
2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in ind AS
12, 'Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment
clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those
past transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period
beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this
amendment,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended fo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of frading

Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
tiability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
* ltis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle
* |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
» [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period -




SE Forge Limited
KNotes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise siated

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time bhetween the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle,
b. Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is the Company's functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. .

Monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected
to continue with the policy of accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long
term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the financial statements prepared as per
Indian GAAR for the year ended March 31, 2016. Accordingly, exchange differences arising on
long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to acquisition of fixed assets (existing as at
March 31, 2016) are adjusted to the cost of fixed assets and depreciated over the remaining life of
the asset.

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

+ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

_ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.,




SE Forge Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise siated

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable,

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be eniitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Since inception of GST regime, payment of integrated goods and service tax (IGST) is the
responsibility of the customer and is not considered in part of the cost of production. Accordingly,
it is excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the significant
risks and rewards in respect of ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyer as per the
terms of the respective sales order and the Company neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold,
generally on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances and discounts.

Payment terms:

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
warranties,). In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

i. Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount
of consideration 1o which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.,

ii. Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical
expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period
between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer
pays for that good or service will be one year or less,

iii. Cost to obtain a contract

The Company pays sales commission for contracts obtained. The Company has elected to apply
the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to
immediately expense sales commissions because the amortisation period of the asset that the
Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.




SE Forge Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201¢

All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise siated

Income from services

Revenue from sale of services is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the
services are rendered.

Contract balances
i. Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services fo a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.

ii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
{i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in section o (Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement).

iii. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the cusiomer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

Interest income

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, 10 the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) hut does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
interest income is accrued on time basis by reference to the principal outstanding.

Merchandise Export from India Scheme (MEIS)

Company receives an incentive for export sales under chapter 3 of Exim policy 2016-20 as a
percentage of exports in terms of authorizations called MEIS which are freely transferabie. The
same are accounted on receipt of the authorizations.

e. Taxes on income
Current income tax

Current income tax assels and Habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying iransaction either in OC| or directly in equity. Management
~-~penod|cally evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations In ich
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Al amaounis in Rupees, unless otherwise slated

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
lfability in a fransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or ioss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibie temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asseis are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC/ or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable enfity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and
equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition
date, viz., April 1, 2015.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the ngp w

o
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Al amounts in Rupees, uniess otherwise slated

cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective
asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

In accordance with IND AS 101 on provisions relating to first time adoption, the Company has
opted to continue with the policy to adjust exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement
of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset
(existing as at 31 March 2016) to the cost of the asset and depreciate the same over the
remaining life of the asset. In accordance with MCA circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange
differences adjusted to the cost of fixed assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign
currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In
other words, the company does not differentiate between exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost
and other exchange differences.

Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives and residual values estimated by the
management in accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The identified
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset. Leasehold land is amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of lease.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives
which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the pericd over which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company has considered the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its tangible

assefs:
Type of asset Useful lives (years)
factory Buildings 30
Plant and Machinery, patterns 2-25
Contribution for assets not owned by the Company 30
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8-10

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

g. Intangible assets
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible assets as

recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition date, viz.,
April 1, 2015,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost-of-.,
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acgcijgit i
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Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulaied
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profil or loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at feast at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefut life or the
expected pattern of consumplion of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or ioss when the asset is derecognised.

_A summar of the pollcy appiied to the Companys :ntangible assets Is, as follows
: Amortlsatton method used

enerated '
Software . 5 years  Amortised over the useful economic life of the Acqunred
: . software

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost primarily includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs, except to the extent it
relates to long-term monetary items pertaining to acquisition of depreciable assets (existing as at
31 March 20186) as referred to in para f above.

Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur,

impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
model is used.
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The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calcutations
which are prepared separately for each of the company's cash-generating units to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a
period of five years. For longer periods, a leng term growth rate is calcuiated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful fife.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

ji- Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assefs, even if that right is not explicifly specified in an
arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of
transition,

Company as a lessee

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.

k. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

¢ Raw materials including stores & spares, consumables, packing material, semi-finished goods
and components: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

+ Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing cverheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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l.  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current
pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of fime is recognised as a finance cost.

m. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the
basis of an actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method as at each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate o the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

+ Net interest expense or income

Short-term compensated absences are provided based on estimates. Long term compensated
absences and other long-term employee benefits are provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at each balance sheet date. The entire leave is
presented as a current liability in the balance sheel, since it does not have an unconditional right
io defer its settlement for 12 months afier the reporting date.

n. Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/{loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/{loss) for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for any bonus shares issued during the year and also after the balance sheet date
but before the date the financial statements are approved by the board of director “or 4@3\
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purpose of calculating diluted earnings/{loss) per share, the net profit/(loss) for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The number of
equity shares and potentially diiutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as appropriate.
The ditutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivabie, had the shares been
issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, uniess issued at a later date.

Financial instruments

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected
to apply following exceptions/exemptions prospectively from April 1, 2015,

¢ Classification and measurement of financial assets have been done based on facts and
circumstances existed on transition date.

¢ De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities have been applied prospectively

e Applied the requirements of relating to accounting for difference between fair value of
financial asset or financial lability from its transaction price of Ind AS 109 prospectively.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

+ Debt instruments at amortized cost

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

+ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
{(FVTPL)

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments af amortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the fallowing conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b} Confractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SFP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integrat part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies o frade and other
receivables. : o,
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Debt instrument at FVTQCI
A‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the foliowing criteria are met;

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OC!). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&l.
interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments inciuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vafue with all changes
recoghized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 108 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IND AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

i the Company decides to classify an equify instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI| fo P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumufative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

De recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obllgat|on to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either: :

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assej,‘
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b} The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has {ransferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues fo
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilittes are classified, af initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of loans and beorrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and horrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or foss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are
satisfied. FFor liabilities designated as FVTPL., fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains / loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
fosses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EiR amortisation process. .
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Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabifity
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefit
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

The company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses it as per Ind AS 37 in the
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit
is remote.

4.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

- with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue,

New and amendment standard

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not
have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted
any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and
Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, o all revenue arising fromﬂg_\ggé racts
ising-Hofp

e i
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contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services o a customer.

Ind AS 116 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and
the costs directly related to fulfilling a confract. In addition, the standard requires extensive
disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative catch-up transition method and applied
to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018, accordingly, comparatives for the year
ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. Application of this Standard does not
have any impact on opening reserves. The Company did not apply any of the available optional
practical expedients when applying this standard.

Appendix B to ind AS 21 Foreign currency transactions and advance considerations:

On March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘the MCA') notified the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign
currency fransactions and advance consideration. The appendix clarifies that, in delermining the
spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the
transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This interpretation does not
have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

5. The Company had losses during the previous year and has continued to incur losses and as at
the year end it's net-worth is substantially eroded with the accumulated losses aggregating to Rs
981.88 crore. Subsequent, to the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has defaulted in
repayment of credit facility payable to lenders aggregating to Rs. 9.86 crore as on May 29, 2019
and has also defaulted in making payments to certain overdue creditors.

The aforesaid conditions indicate liquidity stress and existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company is dependent on the direct or indirect financial support from Suzlon Energy Limited
{(“the parent/ SEL"). The Board of directors of SEL. has evaluated these conditions and has
advised its management to take measures to improve its liquidity condition. SEL is working
towards a resolution plan with its lenders and has received a non-binding offer from a potential
investor, which we are informed is currently extended and valid till June 3, 2019 (the terms of the
non-binding offer provide for extension of the validity period of the offer on an exclusive basis as
may be mutually agreed by the parties), and envisages infusion of additional equity in SEL,
purchase of a business line by the investor and considerable amount of waiver of the debts by the
lenders, which will enable SEL and the Company to scale up its operations and meet the
remaining financial obligations including that of the Company. These measures are contingent
upen the approval of the lenders of the resolution plan including waiver of the debts, and the
approval of SEL’s shareholders for the preferential allotment of shares, which events are not
wholly within the control of SEL.
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The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is solely dependent on obtaining sufficient
funds post the successful outcome of the aforesaid plans of SEL to fund its working capital
requirement. Based on the information available with the Company, the Management of SEL is
confident of obtaining the required approvals of the lenders and shareholders as stated above for
raising adequate resources in the foreseeable future and provide unconditional financial support
to the Company for a peried of 12 months from the date of balance sheet.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will
continue as a going concern and hence, no adjustments have been made to the carrying values
(including adjustment on account of impairment of assets) or classification of assets and Habilities.
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7 Inventories

As af March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018

Raw materials ( inciudes goods in transit as per note below) 43.55 35.23
Work-in-progress 44,46 33.70
Finished goods 17.73 7.69
Stores and spares 16.73 15.17
Total inventory at lower of cost and net realisable value 122.47 91,79

Raw materials inventory includes goods in transit of Rs.2.77 crores (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 1.27 crores)

8 Trade receivables

e .g_-As.,at'"M'a'z_‘i:h__-_S'_I;'2_019-. ~As at March 31,2018
Trade receivables 90.35 67.83
Receivables from related parties (note 39) 2.12 52.97
92.47 120.80
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - .
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 92.47 120.80
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired
Total trade receivables 92.47 120,80

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables {See note 39)

9 (Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

On current accounts 0.09 0.03
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01%
Total 0.10 0.04

10 Other financial assets - non current

A at Warch 31, 2018

{Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Non current bank balances - margin money deposits 8.76 5.35
Security deposits 1.07 1.06
Total 9.83 6.41

Margin money deposits includes deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.8.76 crores (March 31, 2018 : Rs, 5.35 crores) which are subject to

first charge to secure the Company's cash credit {oans,
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11

12 Other non-current assets

13

14

Peferred tax assets (net)

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Opening Deferred tax liability
Tax effect of depreciation constituting deferred tax liabilities

Closing Deferred tax liabilities

Opening Deferred tax assets
Tax effect of depreciation constituting deferred tax assets

Closing Deferred tax assets

66.32 73.10
(11.52) (6.78)
54.80 66.32
66.32 73.10
{11.52) (6.78)
54.80 66.32

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities}

Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and accumulated losses as at March 31, 2019 have been recognized onty to the extent of
deferred tax liabilities on a prudent basis since reasonable certainty of taxabie profits in the future years cannot be established.

‘As at March 31, 2019

“RE st Harch 31, 2015

(unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Capital Advance considered good 0.97 4.88
Capital Advance considered doubtfut 4,29
5.26 4.88
Less allowance for doubtfui advances (4.29)
0.97 4,88
Unamortised lease rent 49.01 51.08
Prepaid lease rent 12.91 14.48
Total 62.89 70.44

Other current financial assets

| “As at March 31,2019

{unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Security deposits 0.34 0.34
Interest accrued but not due 0.21 0.18
Total 0.55 0,52

Other current assets

(unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Advance to suppliers 0.54 1.52
Prepaid expenses 2.15 2.3
Balances with statutory/government authorities 0.83 2.21
Others 0.06 0.02
Total 3.58 6.06
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15 Share capital

‘As at March 31, 2019

"~ As at March 31, 2018

Authorised:

95,00,00,000 (March 31, 2018 : 95,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 950.00 950.00
950.00 950.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
78,49,20,791 (March 31, 2018 : 78,49,20,791) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 784.92 784.92
Total 784.92 784,92
RO R S RE T Numbers - Am_ount'. -
Issued Share Capital:
At Aprit 01, 2017 78.49 784,92
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At March 31, 2018 78.49 784,92
Increase/{decrease) during the year
At March 31, 2019 78.49 784,92

{a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wiil be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders. The Company declares and pays the dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is

subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting,

(b} Shares held by holding company

All the equity shares are held by the holding company, Suzlon Energy Limited, along with its nominees, and as such separate disclosure of
shares held by holding Company and shareholders holding 5% or mare shares has not been given.

(c} Bonus shares

The Company has not issued any bonus shares / shares for consideration other than cash / has not bought back shares during the period

of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(d) Shares issued under option
There are no shares reserved for issue under options.

16  Other equity

| Asat March 31,2018

Equity portion of guarantee commission payable to Parent Company

'~ { ChaNpred B ‘
T4 Acgilanis |
] \ S 6'3/;"
’?s‘; . :!\i\ /(

13,(3&)1(11{)[15@5 of guarantee commission expenses of Rs. 0,55 crores ( for the year ended March 31, 2018: Rs. 0. 08 i
co‘f’ NiE at:?gu%r@ hiee given by holding company towards External Commercial Borrowing loan.

Opening Balance 1.77 1.69
Add: Additions during the year * 0.55 0.08
Closing balance 2.32 t.77
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
Opening Balance 452,93 452,93
Add: Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 452.93 452.93
Peficit in the statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance (936.50} (914.24)
Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year (45.38) {22.26)
Closing balance {981.88) {936.50)
Total (526.63) - {LM}&\ 80)

A
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17 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2019 |- As at March 31, 2018
Secured
Term loan
indian rupee loan from banks (see note i below) 206.06 251.65
Unsecured
Foreign currency loan from banks (see note ii below) 42.47 53.55
Total 248.53 305,20
Less: Current portion of long term loans
(transferred to other financial Habilities) {refer note 22}
Secured
Term loan
Indian rupee loan from banks {see note i below) 44,44 44.44
Unsecured
Foreign currency loan from banks (see note ii below} 9.1 9.37
Total 53.45 53.81
Non-current portion of term loans
Secured
Term loan
Indian rupee loan from banks {see note i below) 161.62 207.21
Unsecured
Foreign currency loan from banks (see note ii below) 33.46 44,18
Total non current borrowings 195.08 251.39

i} Indian rupee term loan from banks comprises term loan (RTL) taken from banks of Rs. 206.06 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 251.65
crores) carrying interest rate of 11.30 to 12,40 per cent per annum . RTL is repayable in 32 structured quarterly instalments from quarter
ended December 2014 to September 2022,

Financial facitities from all lenders and fund based working capital facilities and non fund based working capital facilities are secured by
pari passu charge on all movable assets (both fixed and current assets) and immovable assets of the Company. The said financial
facilities are also secured by personal guarantee of one of the directors of the Company and managing director of the holding company of
the Company.

ii} Unsecured foreign currency term loan includes term loans from Landes Bank for purchase of plant equipment of Rs. 42.47 crores
{March 31,2018: Rs. 53.55 crores } carrying interest at EURIBOR plus five hundred basis points, repayable in 32 structured quarterly
instalments from December 2014. These loans are supported by corporate guarantee given by the holding company, Suzlon £nergy
Limited.

Loan covenants: Bank loans contain certain routine debt covenants like submission of stock statements and audited financials etc. The
Company has satisfied these debt covenants.
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18  Provisions (non-current)

As at March 31, 2019 .

As at March 31, 2018

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36) 1.08 0.82
Provision for long term retention bonus 0.14 0.21
Total 1.22 1.03

19 Current borrowings

As at March 31, 2019

-As at March 31, 2018

Working capitat loans
Secured borrowings

Cash credit from banks 28.71 29.16
Buyer's credit from banks - 19.95
28.71 49.11

Unsecured borrowings
Loans from related parties {refer note below) 17.38 15.66
Total 46.09 64.77

The rate of interest on working capital loans including export packing credit from baniks is 5.80 to 10.95 per cent per annum. For details

of security given and loan covenants for short term borrowings, refer note 17 above.

The short term borrowing from related parties carry an interest of 11 per cent per annum and are repayable on demand. These do not

carry any debt covenants.

20  Provisions (Current)

“As at March 31; 2019 | - As at

Provision for long term retention bonus 0.62 0.91
Provision for compensated absences 2.31 1.72
Total 2,93 2.63

21 Trade payables

As‘at March 31, 2019 | -As at March 31, |

Trade payables

Trade payables 112.57 49,91
Trade payable of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 6.82 4,67
Trade payables to related parties 0.70 1.12
Trade payables for salaries and wages 0.72 0.66
Total 120.81 56.36

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled as per purchase order terms.
Trade payables include acceptances of Rs. 75.32 crores (March 31, 2018 : Rs 22.51 crores).

Trade payable includes the MSMED creditors as given in note 44,
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22 Other financial liabifities

As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018

Current maturities of long term borrewings ( Refer note 17 ) 53.45 53.81
Interest accrued on borrowings*™ 0.56 0.66
Payables for capital goods 5.70 3.42
Others* 1.40 1.40
Total 61.11 5G.29

* M/s. Mettur Structurals, Coimbatore had filed a suit against SE Forge Limited (SEFL/the Company) for disputed supplies before the
council formed under The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Act. The council passed an order in favour of M/s. Mettur Structurals for
the principal amount along with interest. An appeal has been filed before the District Court by the Company and an interim stay has
been obtained on the order passed by the councit. The appeal is pending as of March 31, 2019. Company has made a provision of Rs. 1.40
Crores for the interest.

** Interest payable is normally settled monthiy throughotst the financial year.

23 Other current [iabilities

. As'at March 31,2019

Statutory dues payable 0.69 0.41

Total 0.69 0.41
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24  Revenue from operations

- Year-Ended Year Ended
. " March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Type of goods and services
Sales of Flanges, rings, hubs and main frames 330.84 338.63
Scrap sates 22.33 17.97
Sale of Merchandised Export from India Scheme Licenses 3.47 2.95
Sale of Services 0.29
Total 356.64 359.84
Geography
India 194.47 236.22
Outside India 162.17 123.62
Total 356,64 359.84
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point of time 356.64 359.84
Services transferred over time
Total 356.64 359.84
Contract balances
Trade receivable { refer note ii below) 92.47 120.80
Contract liabilities (refer note iii below) 55.83 53.40
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss
with the contracted price
Revenue with the contracted price 356.64 359.84
Adjustments towards variable considerations
356.64 359.84

Performance obligation

information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

The performance obligation is satisfied when the goods are delivered as per the contract terms. The payment is generally due from 30 to

150 days from the date of invoice.

i. The Company is situated in Special Economic Zone and hence Integrated Goods and Service tax on domestic sale of products is payable

by customer.

. Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 150 days.
fii. Contract tiabilities include advances received to deliver goods
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25 Other income

~ Year Ended
March 31, 2019

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Other non-operating income
Interest income

Bank deposits 0.69 0.40
Others 0.07 0.01
Sundry credit balances and provisions written back 0.81 i.79
Miscellaneous income 0.72 0.56
Total 2.29 2.76

26 Cost of raw materials consumed
R I R RN - Year Ended Year Ended . - .-

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Raw materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the year 35.23 27.24
Add: Purchases 204.58 154.74
239.87 181.98
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 43.55 35.23
Cost of raw material consumed 196.26 146.75
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
T T T earEnded

| March 31,2019 ]

Inventories in hand at the end of the year

Work - in - progress 44.46 33.70
Finished goods 17.73 7.69
62.19 41.39
Inventories in hand at the beginning of the year
Woark - in - progress 33.70 31.10
Finished goods 7.69 16.78
41.39 47.88
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Work - in - progress (10.76) (2.60)
Finished goods (10.04) 9.09
Total (increase} / decrease in inventories {20.80) 6.49
Break up of inventory in hand at the end of the year:
Work - in - progress
Foundry products 36.51 24,07
Forging products 7.95 9.63
44.46 33.70
Finished goods
Foundry products 3.09 1.77
Forging products 14.64 5.92
17.73 7.69
Total 62.19 41.39
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Employee benefits expense
S RS Year Ended “:Year-Ended
. “March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 25.88 76.30
Contribution to provident and other fund 2.01 2.20
Staff welfare expense 1.71 .68
Total 29.60 30,18

Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Year Ended -
:March 31,2019
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment (note 6) 45.81 46.08
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) 0.74 0.73
Total 46,55 46,81
Other expenses
R O wfoi L Year Ended
PR AR RERLICE ' March 31,2019,
Consumption of stores and spares 35. 81 33.83
Power and fuel 46.02 42.52
Other manufacturing expenses 4,55 4.10
Factory labour charges 10.60 8.87
Operating lease rentals * 4.0% 4,05
Rates and taxes 0.29 0.40
Insurance 0.73 1.02
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 2.03 1.29
Buildings 0.09 0.08
Others 0.19 0.31
Business promotion expenses 0.09 0.66
Freight outward 5.21 6.65
Travelling and conveyance 1.96 2.15
Communication expenses 0.12 G.26
Administrative cost 1.02 1.00
Legal and professional fees 0.99 0.94
Director's sitting fees 0.02 0.02
Payment to auditors (refer note below) 0.18 0.23
Exchange difference {net) {5.39} (1.31)
(Profit}/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net} {0.41}) -
Aliowance for doubful advances 4,29 -
Miscellaneous expenses .34 .53
Total 113.82

* Rent comprises of rent paid for factory tand and guest house.

I
m
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Payment to auditors
As auditors
Audit fee 0.15 0.15
Tax audit fee 0.03 0.02
Reimbursement of expense 0.00 0.06
Total 0.18 0.23
Reimbursment of expense for the year ended March 31, 2018 includes Rs.0.05 crores reimbursed to predecessor statutory auditors,
31 Finance cost
e ' ..~ Year Ended -] Year Ended
: R March 31, 2019. |- ‘March 31, 2018
Interest on debts and borrowings 35.33 41.51
Bank charges 2.93 3.38
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost 0.49 1.48
Total 38.75 46,37
32 Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises :
o — T —_ YearEnded ] “Yoar Ended .

“March 31,2019

©'March31, 2018 -

Current tax

In respect of current period
Deferred tax

In respect of current period

Total income tax expense recognised

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as

Profit / {loss) before income tax
Enacted tax rate

Income tax expense calculated (A)
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported

income tax expense
Brought forward losses (B)

(45.25)
34.94%

(22.60)
34.61%

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A-B)

The tax rate used for the above reconciliations are the rates as applicable for the respective periods payable by corporate entities in

India on taxable profits under the India tax laws.

33 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

The disaggregation of changes to OC! in retained earnings is as follows:

Remeasurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans

Total
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Earning/loss per share (EPS)
R : <o Year Ended ©  Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit/{loss) for the year (45.25) (22.60)
Weighted average number of equity shares 78.49 78.4%
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share of Rs.10 each { in rupees) (0.58) {0.29)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in autcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affecting in future
periods.

Judgements:
In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, the management has made following adjustments, which have the most
sighificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future develepments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the company, Such changes are reflected in the assumption when they occur. Actual results coutd
differ from these estimates.

Impairment of non financial assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount which is higher of
fair value less disposal cost and assets value in use. The fair value less disposal cost calculation is based on data available to the
Company for similar asset or observable market prices less incremental cost of disposal. The value in use calculation is based on DCF
model. The cash flows do not include restructuring activities or significant future adjustments that the company will carry out in future,
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for DCF model as well as the expected future cash flows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for different CGUs or assets,
including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in the accounting policies.

Deferred tax ;

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing
differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The Company has
determined that in the absence of reasonable certainty with respect to sufficient future taxable income, it can not recognise deferred
tax asset.

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
Likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined Benefits plans (gratuity benefits and other long term employee benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long term employee benefit plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
and other long term employee benefit are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highty sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the employee benefit

obligation.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortatity tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 36.
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36  Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (‘Deflined Benefit’). Every employee, who has completed five years or more of service,
is eligible for gratuity. Gratuity is computed based on 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme

is partially funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Year Ended
March 31, 2019

“Year Ended
.-March 31, 2018

Principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity obligations for the
Company's plans:

Discounting rate
Salary escalation rate

Attrition rate

Retirement age

7.55%
8.00%

18.65% al younger ages
and reducing to 8.69% at
older ages according to
graduated scale

65 years if jolined on or
before Januvary 31,
2010.

60 years if joined after
January 31, 2010

7.70%
8.00%

17.10% at younger ages
and reducing to 8.20% at
older ages according to
graduated scale

65 years if joined on or
before January 31,
2010.

60 years if joined after
January 31, 2010

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined
based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the partially

funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity plan:

.- Year Ended
Mareh 3152

Net employee benefit expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost

0.52 (.60

fnterest cost on benefit obligation 0.21 0.19
Expected return on ptan assets (0.15) 0.11)

Net benefit expense (refer note 28) * 0.58 0.68

* This amount includes ex-gratia of Rs. 0.34 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs.0.34 crores) paid directly by the Company.
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Remeasurement gain/losses in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement for the year- Obligation - (gains)/losses 0.12 (0.33)
Remeasurement for the year- plan assets - {gains)/{osses 0.01 (0.01)
Net recognition in other comprehensive income 0.13 (0.34)

As at March 31, 2019

CAs at March 31, 2018

Details of defined benefit gratuity plan

Defined benefit obligation {A) 3.29 2.78

Fair value of plan assets (B) 2.39 1.95

Plan liability / (asset) {A-B) 1.10 0.83
“ Year Ended ¢ ' -Year Ended

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 2.78 2.66
Interest cost 0.21 0.19
Current service cost 0.52 0.60
Benefits paid (0.34) {0.34)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 0.12 {0.33
Closing defined benefit obligation 3.29 2.78
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Cpening fair value of plan assels 1.95 1.57
Expected return on plan assets 0.15 ¢.11
Actuarial gain/ {loss) (0.01) 0.01
Employer's Contribution .10 0.26
Benefits paid -
Closing fair value of plan assets 2.19 1.95
The major category of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets
are as follows;
Investment with insurer 100% 100%
Detaits of composition of plan assets are not readily available from the insurance company.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions increase/decrease by
100 basis point as at March 31, 2019 is as below
Defined Benefit obligation 3.29 2,78
Discount Rate
6.55% (31 March 2018: 6.7 %) 3.58 3.03
8.55% (31 March 2018: 8.7 %} 3.04 2.57
Salary increment rate
7% (31 March 2018: 7 %) 3.06 2.57
9% (31 March 2018: 9 %) 3.59 3.02
Withdrawal rate
Decrease by 50% of withdrawal rate 3.35 2.81
3.26 2.78

Increase by 50% of withdrawal rate

The expected contribution to defined benefit plan ( based on discounted cash flows using mortality, withdrawal and interest rate)for
next year is Rs, .66 crores. :
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funding arrangements and funding policy;
The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance company
carries out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a resuit
of such valuation is funded by the Company.

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

1 year 0.37
2 to 5 years 1.39
6 to 10 years 1.35
More than 10 years 4,26

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is
declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance company, as part of the policy rides, makes payment
of ail gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy}.The pelicy, thus, mitigates the
liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the
Company is exposed to movement in inferest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which shouid result in a increase in
liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

Other long term employment benefits includes compensated absences and long term retention konus for which provisions are made
based on actuarial valuation.

Defined Contribution plan

Amount recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in respect of defined contribution plan (provident fund} is Rs.1.27
crores (Year ended March 31,2018: Rs. 1.29 crores)

Commitments and contingencies
A, Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for :

| As at March 31, 2 rch 31,2018

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
. 32.15 30.96
provided for, net of advances

B. Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledge * 2.70 -
Amount in respect of MSMED 1.24 1.04

* Welmech Engineering Company Private Limited (Welmech) has filed a winding up petition at National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Ahmedabad for initiation of corporate insolvency process claiming an amount of Rs. 2.14 crores towards supplies and interest of Rs, 2.70
crores for a period of 7 years. SE Forge Limited responded to the petition denying the claim and that the said amount was under dispute.
The matter is still pending for hearing with NCLT as at March 31, 2019, Management believes that the case filed by Welmech will not be
tenable and hence has not provided for the interest claim amounting to Rs. 2.70 crores.
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39 Related party disclosures and transactions as per Ind - AS 24

A. Related party disclosures

Helding Company: Suzton Energy Limited
Related parties where control exists (refer note v below}

Subsidiary: Ataegina Forge Limited

Subsidiary: Hoenir Forge Limited

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Post Employment Benefit Pian: SE Forge Limited Employee's Group Gratuity Scheme

Entities where Key Management Personnel has interest :
Aspen Infrastructures Limited
AspenPark Infra Vadodara Private Limited
AspenPark Infra Coimbatore Private Limited
SE Freight and Logistics India Private Limited

Key Management Personnel:

Chief Mentoring Officer: Mr Girish R, Tanti

Chief Executive Officer: Mr. Sunil J. Gupta

Chief Financial Officer: Mr. TPA Narayanan

Independent Director: Mrs. Pratima Ram

Independent Director: Mr. Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman
Independent Director: Mr. Per Torven Hornung Pédersen
Independent Director: Ms. Nidhi T. Tanti

Director: Mr. Vinod R, Tanti

Company Secretary: Mr, Akshay Kulkarni
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B. Related party transactions and balances

~.As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Investment in subsidiary companies { Refer note v below)
Ataegina Forge Limited
Hoenir Forge Limited

Suzlon Energy Limited - Holding Company
Sale of goods
Purchase of goods
Interest expense
Bank guarantee expenses
Loan taken
Loan balance
Amount owed by related party
Amount {owed to) related party

Transaction and balance with Entities where Key Management Personnel has
interest :

Aspen Infrastructures Limited

Facility management charges and other services
Reimbursement of expenses
Deposits given

Amount owed to related party
Amount owed by related party
Amount owed as a security deposit

AspenPark infra Vadodara Private Limited
Facility management charges and other services
Reimbursement of expenses
Deposits given
Amount owed to related party
Amount owed by related party
Amount owed as a security deposit

AspenPark Infra Coimbatore Private Limited
Facility management charges and other services
Reimbursement of expenses
Deposits given
Amount owed to related party
Amount owed by related party
Amount owed as a security deposit

SE Freight and Logistics India Private Limited
Purchase of services
Amount owed to related party

SE Forge Limited Employee’s Group Gratuity Scheme
Contribution to fund

57.88
0.63
1.72
0.54
1.72

17.38
2.2

{56.20)

1.28
26.00

(0.65)

0.50
0.61

1.85
21,99
(2.67)
1.95

0.04
{0.09)

0.10

0.00
0.00

145.92
0.22
1.55
0.55
1.55

15.66
52.96
{50.28)

3.02
42.73
0.32

(1.04)
0.50
2.56

0.1%
{0.08)

0.26
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As at March 31, 2019 | ‘As at March 31, 2018

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Girish R. Tanti - CMO 1.1 1.1
Mr. Sunil J. Gupta - CEO 1.34 1.61
Mr. TPA Narayanan - CFO 0.61 0.68
Mr. Akshay Kutkarni - Company Secretary 0.02 0.03

Sitting fees

Mrs. Pratima Ram - Independent Director (SB1) 0.00 0.00
Mr, Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman - thdependent Director 0.00 0.01
Mr. Per Torven Hornung Pedersen 0.01 0.01
Ms, Nidhi T. Tanti 0.00 0.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

i) The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevait in arm’s tength transactions.
Qutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (March 31, 2018: INR Nit). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

i} The Company has availed a (ong term loan from Landes Bank amounting of Rs. 42.46 crores (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 53.55 crores} for
which a corporate guarantee has been given by the holding company.,

fii} The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and compensated absences, as
they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

iv) The company's financial facilities from all tenders and fund based working capital facilities and non fund based working capital
facilities are secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Girish Tanti.

v) The company had incorporated two subsidiaries namely Ataegina Forge Ltd and Hoenir Forge Ltd on May 31, 207 and on June 05, 2017
respectively with paid up capital of Rs.200 divided into 20 equity shares of Rs.10 each in both companies. These companies were
incorporated to carry out Independent Power Projects and the Company invested Rs.140 divided into 14 eguity shares of Rs.10 each in
both the subsidiaries.

The company had applied to Registrar of Companies to strike off name of both the subsidiaries under Section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 and accordingly name of these companies have been striked off in Registrar of Companies record on February 22, 2019.

Fair value measurements

The fair value of the financial assets and tiabitities are considered to be same as their carrying values. Accordingly the Company has not
disclosed fair vaiue hierarchy.

Financial instrument and risk review

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets inciude trade
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its gperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
firancial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

a, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return. Market risk comprises only of foreign currency risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating
activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s borrowings in foreign currency.
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The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows;

Ush Exposure EUR Exposure
{Amount in INR} (Amount in INR)
As at March 31, 2019
Financial assets
Trade receivable 69.06 10.0%
Bark Balances - -
69.06 10.05
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 42,46
Trade payables 17.16 21.85
17.16 64.31

As at March 31, 2018
Financial assets

Trade receivable 43.70 22.1

Bank Balances i

43.70 2.1

Financial Habilities
Borrowings 2.55 70.37
Trade payables 0.83 6.45
3.38 76,82

b. Fereign currency sensitivity

The Company’s currency exposures in respect of monetary items at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 that result in net currency gains
and fosses in the income statement and equity arise principally from movement in US Dollar and EURO exchange rates.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

As at March 31, 2019

Us Dollar 1% 0.52

US Dollar 1% (0.52)
EURO 1% (0.54)
EURD -1% 0.54

As at March 31, 2018 1% 0.40

UsS Dollar -1% (0.40}
Us Dollar 1% (0.55)
EURO -1% 0.55

EURO

c. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty witl not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custemer contract, teading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, foreign exchange transactions. Credit risk is managed on Company basis. The Company consistently monitors the financial
health of its customers and sales proceeds are being realized as per the milestone payment terms agreed to minimize the loss due to
defaults or insolvency of the customer. Progressive liquidity management is being followed to de-risk the Company from any non-
fulfilment of its liabilities.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Qutstanding customer recetvables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are
generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

o




SE Forge Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated}
d. Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles

of financial assets and liabilities.

e. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Loan taken by company from Landes Bank may be affected due to changes in EURIBOR rate.

The table below summarises the contractual maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractuat undiscounted

payment:

- other financial .

Borrowings including

. Trade payables™

Year ended March 31, 2019
Cn Demand
Upto One year
1- 5 years
> five years
Total
Year ended March 31, 2018
On Demand
Upto One year
1-5vyears
> five years
Total

17.38 17.41
89.81 103.40
195.08
302.27 120.81
15.66 21.42
108.40 34,94
251.38 -
375.44 36,36

42  Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to maximise the

shareholder value.

‘As‘atMarch 31,2018"

Borrawings (note 17) 248.53 305.20
Borrowings current {note 19) 46.09 64,77
Trade Payables { Note 21) 120.81 56,36
Other Payables (Note 22 & 23) 8.35 5.89
Less: Cash and Cash Equivaient (Note 9) {0.10} (0.04)
Net Debt 423.68 432.18
Equity Capital 784,92 784,92
Reserves & Surplus (526.63) (481.80)
Net worth 258.29 303.12
Gearing ratio (times) 1.64 1.43
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SE Forge Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated)

45

46

44 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under The MSMED Act, 2006

As at__March 31,2019 | As at March 31, 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier
at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 6.82 4.67
Interest due on above 0.12 0.99
6.94 2.66

{i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section16 of MSMED Act,
2006 along with the amounts of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year

(i} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 $.13 0.05

(ifl) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting vear

{iv} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as deductible expenditure under section 23

of the MSMED Act 2006 1.25 1.04

* Interest payable as per section 16 of the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development, 2006, for the year is Rs 1.25 crores
(March 31, 2018 Rs.1.04 crores),

In 2012-13 workers had resorted to an illegal strike and did not report for work. These workers were suspended by the company,
Workers also filed a case in Labour court and subsequentty a Memorandum of Understanding(MoU) was signed on August 13, 2012 and
October 04, 2012, where in all issues were discussed and agreed to between the Trade Union representing the workers and the
Management of SE Forge. Subsequently, the workers filed a case with Industrial Tribunal Chennai when the Mot could not be
implemented and various conciliation efforts failed. The Union had filed a claim settlement in February 2016 and management had fited
a counter statement in April 2016. The company has offered settiement of dues to workers at the rate of Rs. 1,40,000/- per worker and
Rs. 25,000/~ per trainee amounting to Rs.1.55 crores for this matter which is in dispute. During January, 2019, company has taken 62

workers on duty and Management is of the opinion that no dues for past are payable to these workers including any retirement benefits.

Net Foreign Earnings :
As per the requirements of rule 53 of Special Economic Zones Rules, 2006 (SEZ Rules), units set up in Special Economic Zones {S£7), need
to achieve cumulative positive Net Foreign Exchange (NFE} by the end of five years from the date of commencement of business. Rule 54
of SEZ Rules states that if Net Foreign Exchange is not achieved by the due date, then the unit shall be liable to pay ohe per cent of short
fall in free on board value.
The forging unit of the Company located at Vadedara commenced its business in September 2008 and foundry unit located at Coimbatore
commenced operations in January 2009. So far both units has completed ten years of operation in SEZ and has got a further extenston
upto September 23, 2023 for Forging unit and upto February 01, 2024 for Foundry unit.
Post completion of the extension period, if the company is unable to achieve positive Net Foreign Exchange, the company shall re-apply
for extension of time limits to respective SEZ Authorities. The company is confident of receiving further extension.




SE Forge Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in crores unless otherwise stated)

47 Corporate social responsibility :

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company Rs. Nil during the year (since the average net profit for last three financial years

{preceding the financial year under review) is negative.)
b. Amount spent during the year Rs. Nil

48 Since all figures are rounded off Rupees in crores with two decimal, some amounts less than one takh rupees are appearing as zero in the

financial statements.
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